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Mr. George Piantka

Director of Regulatory Environmental Services
NRG Energy, West Region

5790 Fleet Street, Suite 200

Carlsbad, CA 92008-4703

Dear Mr. Piantka:

RE: INTERIM MITIGATION MEASURES PAYMENT FOR MANDALAY GENERATING
STATION UNDER THE ONCE-THROUGH COOLING POLICY

This letter serves as an invoice for interim mitigation payments for Mandalay Generating Station
for October 2015 through September 2016, provides the final determination for the interim

mitigation, and requests information to calculate payments for October 2016 through September
2017.

Background

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) Statewide Water Quality Control
Policy on the Use of Coastal and Estuarine Waters for Power Plant Cooling (Policy) requires
owners or operators of existing power plants to implement measures to mitigate interim
impingement and entrainment impacts resulting from their cooling water intake structures. The
interim mitigation period commenced on October 1, 2015, and continues up to and until owners
or operators achieve final compliance with the Once-Through Cooling (OTC) Policy. Section
2.C(3) of the Poalicy provides options for demonstrating compliance with the interim mitigation
requirements.

Consistent with the settlement agreement of October 9, 2014, with the State Water Board, NRG
Energy, Inc. (NRG) proposed to comply with interim mitigation for its Mandalay Generating
Station by implementing option 2.C.(3)(b). Option 2.C(3)(b) demonstrates compliance with
interim mitigation by providing funding to the Ocean Protection Council or California Coastal
Conservancy to fund an appropriate mitigation project. Per Section 2.C(3)(e) of the Policy, it is
the preference of the State Water Board that funding be for mitigation projects directed toward
increasing marine life in marine protected areas in the geographic region of the facility. The
NRG mitigation funds will be applied to the Oxnard Wetlands Restoration Project per the
settlement agreement.

The State Water Board-sent a letter requesting information to determine an interim mitigation
payment for Mandalay Generating Station. The State Water Board received your response on
September 26, 2016.
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Mr. Piantka DEC 1 1 2017

Final Determination and Invoice

Based on the information provided in your response, the State Water Board approves the
interim mitigation measure described in Section 2.C(3)(b) for Mandalay Generating Station
(Attachment A). The State Water Board calculated interim mitigation payments as the sum of
three components: an entrainment payment, an impingement payment, and a management and
monitoring payment. The 2015-2016 interim mitigation payment for Mandalay Generating
Station is $115,785.14.

Mandalay Generating Station has sixty days from the receipt of the determination letter to make
this payment to the State Coastal Conservancy. When submitting this payment, include a cover
letter that identifies the California Integrated Water Quality System number for Mandalay
Generating Station and copy Karen Larsen, Director of the Division of Water Quality at the State
Water Board. Please make the check payable to the State Coastal Conservancy and send to:
Mary Small
State Coastal Conservancy
1515 Clay St. Suite 1500
Oakland, CA 946121
Reference Account # 3760-801-8029017

Request for Information

As described in Resolution No. 2015-0057, the State Water Board will continue to calculate the
interim mitigation payments for each annual period until NRG’s Mandalay Generating Station
comes into compliance with the OTC Palicy. In order to calculate the interim mitigation
determination for the period of October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017, please submit the
following information applicable to your facility to Katherine Faick at the State Water Board
within sixty days of receipt of this letter:

1. Monthly and total intake volume for October 1, 2016, through September 30, 2017:
2. Actual annual impingement data in total pounds from October 1, 2016 through
September 30, 2017, or newly available impingement data since October 1, 2016.

Contact Information

If you have questions regarding this invoice, please contact Katherine Faick at (916) 445-2317
(Katherine.Faick@waterboards.ca.gov) or Mariela Paz Carpio-Obeso at (916) 341-5858
(MarielaPaz.Carpio-Obeso@waterboards.ca.gov).

Sincerely,

Eileen Sobeck

Executive Director

Enclosure:
Attachment A - Final Determination for Mandalay Generating Station



Mr. Piantka DEC 1 1 2017

Ge: Ms. Marry Small
Chief Deputy Executive Officer
State Coastal Conservancy
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1500
Oakland, CA 946121

cc via email:

Mr. Jonathan Bishop, Johnathan.Bishop@waterboards.ca.gov

Ms. Karen Larsen, Karen.Larsen@waterboards.ca.gov

Mr. Michael Lauffer, Michael.Lauffer@waterboards.ca.gov

Ms. Marleigh Wood, Marleigh.Wood@waterboards.ca.gov

Mr. Phil Crader, Phillip.Crader@waterboards.ca.gov

Ms. Rebecca Fitzgerald, Rebecca.Fitzgerald@waterboards.ca.gov

Mr. Samuel Unger, Samuel.Unger@waterboards.ca.gov




Attachment A — Final Determination for Mandalay Generating Station




FINAL DETERMINATION TO APPROVE MITIGATION MEASURES FOR THE WATER
QUALITY CONTROL POLICY ON THE USE OF COASTAL AND ESTUARINE WATERS
FOR POWER PLANT COOLING (ONCE-THROUGH COOLING POLICY):

MANDALAY GENERATING STATION

Interim Mitigation Reguirements of the Once-Through Cooling Policy

The Once-Through Cooling (OTC) Policy requires owners or operators of existing power
plants to implement measures to mitigate interim impingement and entrainment impacts
resulting from their cooling water intake structures. The interim mitigation period commenced
on October 1, 2015, and continues up to and until owners or operators achieve final
compliance with the OTC Policy. Section 2.C(3) of the Policy provides the following
information for demonstrating compliance with interim mitigation:

{a) Demonstrate to the satisfaction of the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water
Board) that the owner or operator is compensating for the interim impingement and
entrainment impacts through existing mitigation efforts, including any projects that are
required by state or federal permits as of October 1, 2010; or

(b) Demonstrate to the State Water Board'’s satisfaction that the interim impacts are
compensated for by the owner or operator by providing funding to the California Coastal
Conservancy which will work with the California Ocean Protection Council to fund an
appropriate mitigation project; or

(c) Develop and implement a mitigation project for the facility, approved by the St_ate Water
Board, which will compensate for the interim impingement and entrainmentimpacts.

(d) Use the habitat production foregone (HPF) method, or comparable alternate method
approved by the State Water Board in order to determine the habitat and area, based on
replacement of the annual entrainment, for funding a mitigation project.

(e} The State Water Board preference is that funding be provided to the California Coastal
Conservancy, working with the California Ocean Protection Council, for mitigation projects
directed toward increases in marine life associated with the State’s Marine Protected
Areas (MPA) in the geographic region of the facility.

Consistent with the settlement agreement of October 9, 2014, with the State Water Board,
NRG Energy, Inc. (NRG) proposed to comply with interim mitigation for its Mandalay
Generating Station by providing funding for mitigation projects directed towards increasing
marine life in marine protected areas in the geographic region of the facility. '

On August 18, 2015, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2015-0057 (2015
Resolution), delegating to its Executive Director the authority to approve proposed measures




for power plant owners or operators to comply with interim mitigation on a case-by-case basis.
The 2015 Resolution also includes procedures for calculating a mitigation payment for the
power plants that have selected the interim mitigation option of providing funding to the
Coastal Conservancy for appropriate mitigation projects. As described in the 2015 Resolution
and consistent with the recommendations of the Expert Review Panel on minimizing and
mitigating intake impacts from power plants and desalination facilities, the State Water Board
calculated interim mitigation payments to equal the sum of three components: an entrainment
payment, an impingement payment, and a management and monitoring payment.

Estimate of Interim Mitigation Payment for NRG's Mandalay Generating Station

Entrainment Payment Estimate

To calculate the interim mitigation payment to offset entrainment impacts, staff used the
default average cost of entrainment of $4.60 per million gallons (MG) updated to 2016 dollars
with a projection of one year for funding to be used in 2017. The updated average
entrainment cost calculates to be $4.73/MG as shown in Table 1.

NRG submitted a January 2006 through January 2007 impingement mortality and entrainment
study along with entrainment estimates dated December 29, 2010'. Entrainment sampling
and source water sampling were limited and not adequately paired. Twenty-four entrainment
samples were collected from January 2006 through January 2007, and only six source water
samples were collected from June 2006 through November 2006. Entrainment data collected
after 2007 did not include source water sampling. Therefore, the data were not sufficient to
calculate a facility-specific entrainment cost.

To determine the intake flow volume, staff relied on data provided in NRG’s documentation
dated November 29, 2016. NRG stated that the maximum intake volume at Mandalay
Generating Station for the interim mitigation period of October 1, 2015, to September 30,
2016, was 20,319.92 MG. Verification of these volume data with the data submitted in the

NPDES permit monitoring reports for Mandalay Generating Station showed that this volume
data was accurate.

To estimate the entrainment payment, staff multiplied the intake volume by the calculated
average cost of entrainment.

20,319.92 MG X $4.73/MG = $96,113.22

! Letter from George L. Piantka, NRG Energy, to Division of Water Quality Deputy Director Karen Larsen, State

Water Board (Nov. 29, 2016) at <

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/ocean/cwa316/powerplants/mandalay/docs/mandalay
imf16.pdf>




Impingement Payment Calculation

In the November 29, 2016 letter, NRG provided estimated impingement fish count results and
flow data from 2013 through 2016. Staff used these data to establish an average
impingement rate. Staff then used the average impingement rate and the actual flow for the
2015-2016 interim mitigation period to calculate an annual estimated impingement amount of
468 pounds. Staff calculated the impingement payment using the calculated annual estimate
value and the average indirect economic value of the fisheries as determined in the Expert
Review Panel's final report of $0.80 per pound.

Therefore, the impingement calculation is as follows:
$0.80/pound X 468 pounds = $374.40

Staff calculated the management and monitoring fee by tak:ng twenty percent of the sum of
the entrainment and impingement payments.

0.20 X ($96,113.22 + $374.40) = $19,297.52

State Water Board’s Final Determination for Mandalay Generating Station

Based on the sum of the entrainment, impingement, and management and monitoring
payment calculations, the total payment is $115,785.14 to fulfill the interim mitigation
obligation for NRG’s Mandalay Generating Station for the operating period of October 1,
2015, to September 30, 2016.

$96,113.22 + $374.40 + $19,297.52 = $115,785.14
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